



Sustainability & Resilience Commission

MEETING DATE

Monday, December 20, 2021 3:30 p.m.

MEETING LOCATION - Virtual Meeting

Microsoft Teams meeting

Join on your computer or mobile app

Click here to join the meeting

Or call in (audio only)

+1 480-498-8745,,351150424# United States, Phoenix
Phone Conference ID: 351 150 424#
Find a local number | Reset PIN

AGENDA ITEM	PRESENTER	ACTION or INFORMATION
1. Public Appearances The Sustainability Commission welcomes public comment for items listed on this agenda. There is a three-minute time limit per citizen.	Kendon Jung, Commission Chair (3:30 – 3:33 pm)	Information
Approval of Meeting Minutes The Commission will be asked to review and approve meeting minutes from the November 15, 2021 meeting.	Kendon Jung, Commission Chair (3:33 – 3:35 pm)	Action
3. CLiPP Program Guests will provide updates.	John Penry, Beth Penry-Dietz (3:35– 3:55 pm)	Action
 Sustainability & Resilience FY 22-23 Budget Staff will provide updates. 	Braden Kay, Sustainability Director (3:55–4:05 pm)	Action
5. Climate Action Plan Update Staff will provide updates.	Braden Kay, Sustainability Director (4:05–4:25 pm)	Action
6. Commission Communication Staff will provide updates.	Kendon Jung, Commission Chair (4:25 – 4:40 pm)	Action
7. Commission Retreat Staff will provide updates.	Kendon Jung, Commission Chair (4:40 – 4:55 pm)	Action
 8. Housekeeping Items Joint Sustainability/NAC Commission meeting Sustainability awards: application deadline date is February 15; Commission decision by February 22; Awards event is March 26; 	Kendon Jung, Commission Chair (4:55 – 5:10 pm)	Action
9. Future Agenda Items Commission may request future agenda items.	Kendon Jung, Commission Chair (5:10 – 5:20 pm)	Action

According to the Arizona Open Meeting Law, the Sustainability Commission may only discuss matters listed on the agenda. The City of Tempe endeavors to make all public meetings accessible to persons with disabilities. With 48 hours advance notice, special assistance is available at public meetings for sight and/or hearing-impaired persons. Please call 350-2775 (voice) or 350-8400 (TDD) to request an accommodation to participate in a public meeting.



Minutes

City of Tempe Sustainability Commission November 15, 2021

Minutes of the Tempe Sustainability Commission meeting held on Monday, November 15, 2021, 3:30 p.m. at a virtual meeting on MS Teams, through City Hall, 31 E. 5th Street, Tempe, Arizona.

(MEMBERS) Present:

Kendon Jung (Chair) Barbie Burke (Vice Chair) Jake Swanson Ryan Mores Stephanie Milam-Edwards Gretchen Reinhardt Katja Brundiers John Kane

(MEMBERS) Absent:

None

City Staff Present:

Grace DelMonte Kelly Henry Pearson Braden Kay

Guests Present:

Natalie Mendoza David Sokolowski

Chair Jung called the meeting to order at 3:32 p.m.

Agenda Item 1 - Public Appearances

Chair Jung asked the guests to introduce themselves. Natalie Mendoza stated that she is observing the meeting because she is considering applying to the commission.

Agenda Item 2 – Approval of Meeting Minutes

Chair Jung introduced the minutes of the October 18, 2021 meeting. No amendments were made. Vice Chair Burke made a motion to approve the minutes. Commissioner Kane seconded.

Motion: Vice Chair Burke **Second:** Commissioner Kane **Decision:** Approved 8-0

Voted to Approve:

Kendon Jung (Chair) Barbie Burke (Vice Chair) Ryan Mores Jake Swanson John Kane Gretchen Reinhardt Katja Brundiers Stephanie Milam-Edwards

Motion Passed 8-0.

Agenda Item 3 – Sustainability and Resilience FY 22-23 Budget

Chair Jung gave a high-level context for the budget discussion:

- Success has come from engaging with council members/other commissions and establishing positive working relationships with them.
- This has lead to Climate Action Plan, doubling carbon neutrality funds, and numerous other projects/grants.
- The budget is an essential tool for climate action to be passed.
- It is essential that commission members engage with the community to ensure the budget provides for climate action.

Sustainability Director Braden Kay spoke about the budget:

- What separates a great office of Sustainability from an okay one is how much the work shows up in the city budget.
- City budget reflects values.
- Quality is measured by how much money is in the budget.
- Collective lobbying work is the reason for many great climate action advancements in Tempe.
- This year's budget is really important for climate action momentum.
- There are 2 separate buckets of money: operating and capital.
- Operating pays for people and programs
- Capital pays for infrastructure and buildings.
- These have 2 separate processes. These are outlined on the city website.
- You are able to vote on what should be in the budget on the city website. This survey opens in January.
- Public budget forums are upcoming in February.
- On November 4th there was a work study program with long-term budget forecast. Braden went through the budget forecast:
 - The unassigned fund balance is around 50%, aims to be around 20%. The city is sitting on a reserve of cash and is deciding how quickly to spend this money.
 - Braden highlighted a chart that lays out how much money can be spent as a onetime expenditure and how much can be spent on recurring expenditures, as well as how many full-time positions can be added.
 - The chart shows there is money for \$6 million recurring, \$1 million one time, and 25 positions.
 - It is easier to get one-time money vs recurring money.
- Braden highlighted a strategy tool that city council uses.
 - These help council select performance measures.
 - 5 performance measures, sustainability is one of them.
 - S.T.A.R.T program.
- Next year
 - There will be a forecast update.
 - Staff will be making recommendations on the capital program.
 - Long way to go on argument for investment.

- February public forums.
- March there is a work study program.
- April the city manager will review the budget, review in May if needed.
- Tentative adoption May 26, final adoption June 9, and new budget year begins July 1.
- Intervention needs to happen before the work study sessions in late March/April.
- December 16 will tell us if our performance measures will be accelerated.
- Council should prepare strategy for results of START tool.

Commissioner Milam-Edwards, asked for an explanation of the performance objectives so she can get children to help write letters encouraging focus on climate:

- Chair Jung says that the commission can work on developing this.
- Braden provided a link to a resource: performance.tempe.gov
- Braden says CoolKids hopes to implement a program for letter writing, etc.
- Commissioner Reinhardt said that the existing website combined with age-appropriate questions related to community and quality of life could be implemented.
- Chair Jung challenged the commission to synthesize this information into talking points that can be shared with the community.
- Commissioner Brundiers suggest a shared document to share ideas and talking points to then summarize.
 Members could then bring this document to their communities and show them how they can make their voice heard.
 - Chair Jung added that laws do not allow collaborative projects with more than 3 people.
 - Chair Jung suggested an individual action item. Commissioners should think about and share tactics and what should be included in that language. Members should focus on their specific communities. They should do this within the next week then send their ideas to he and Vice Chair Burke through staff.
- Chair Jung emphasized that the commissioners should fill the gap between what staff can and cannot do.

Agenda Item 4 – Climate Action Plan Update

Braden spoke about the Climate Action Plan Update.

- Will be presenting to council on Wednesday.
- Focus of plan:
 - Emissions reduction
 - Resilience to extreme heat
- Update includes stakeholder agendas, GHG inventories, and policy recommendations.
- The presentation to the council on Wednesday will cover what constituents want.
- Listening and planning phases have ended, review and approval is in progress.
- 4 agendas- Business, Youth, Neighborhood, and Climate Justice.
 - Business: Mobility Hubs, Energy Efficiency
 - Partner with local businesses leaders.
 - Youth: Food and Transportation Equity
 - Partner with school boards and leaders.
 - Student involvement and outreach.
 - Highlight action: Green Stormwater Infrastructure
 - Climate Justice: Heat Awareness and Energy, Land Stewardship, Urban Forestry/Landscape
 - Partner with community-based organizations.
 - Highlight Action: Resilient Energy Hubs (EnVision Tempe)
 - Neighborhood: Resilience to heat, community-based organizations
 - Highlight action: Resilient hubs

- Finalizing and reviewing plan in January. GHG emissions update and final recommendations will come in January.
- Final approval in Feb/March.
- April: budget supplemental for council.
- February is the timeline for having everything prepared regarding lobbying.
- Questions:
 - Commissioner Reinhardt said that a criteria-based approach is needed as opposed to NGO's/community organizations. She wants the presentations to emphasize the need to determine criteria for progress.
 - Chair Jung replied that the community was included to ensure that the community voices were heard.
 - Commissioner Brundiers asked Commissioner Reinhardt to clarify her question. She referenced equity maps that looked at different areas that are most vulnerable.
 - Commissioner Reinhardt stated that those maps are critical and other information like that should be emphasized. The problem is that people are not connected to community organizations. The data needs to be connected to the experiences of the community.
 - Braden agreed with Commissioner Reinhardt and replied that the challenge is a lack of representation for communities as there is no governance mechanism to have their voices articulated. Creating those organizations and building power in those neighborhoods is a way to change. He emphasized the difficulty of solving the problem. He said that departments taking time to listen to the community has yielded positive results. Gave the example of transportation department employees riding buses to understand problems with buses. Focus should be on populations that are not thriving in Tempe. He has seen investment in community organizations in other cities bring about change, but it is harder in Tempe. He prefers grassroots organizations as opposed to Unlimited Potential.
 - Commissioner Swanson shared his experience with a community organization in Phoenix.

Agenda Item 5 - Sustainability and Livability Council Committee

Braden spoke about the committee

- There are a lot of new events in January
- Important to have good attendance as the committee will hear about potential new policies.
- Important to begin discussion during the first 3 months of the year.
- Solar building code, EV building code, sustainable building policy.
- Essentially there is one month to organize and coordinate everything for committee meetings.
- Braden will have the agenda for the Jan and Feb meetings. There are high profile issues going in front of that commission and that is where policy will be made.

Chair Jung spoke about spending time to queue up upcoming meetings

- He and Vice Chair Burke will work on detailing the date/time/link/method of involvement/scheduling for meetings.
- Commissioners should submit a comment card for these meetings.
- Braden said this Wednesday (Nov 17) is a good opportunity to fill out a comment card, and people really listen to comment cards. Not having comments when resolutions are read is not good. They are one of the most effective tools to get your voice heard in these meetings.
- Showing up to the meetings (virtually or in person) is very important as well.
- Braden mentioned that you must put the agenda item number on the comment card. He provided a link to the comment card: https://www.tempe.gov/government/city-clerk-s-office/city-council-online-meeting-comment-card
- And the agenda: http://documents.tempe.gov/sirepub/mtqviewer.aspx?meetid=1650&doctype=AGENDA

Agenda Item 6 - Sustainability and Resilience Policy Update

Braden had nothing to add for this item.

Agenda Item 7 – Commission Retreat

Chair Jung spoke about the retreat

- He asks each member to reply to the email invitation for this meeting with their availability around and after the new year.
- It should be done on a weekend. This will be in addition to (not a replacement of) the regular commission meeting.
- He asks members to give their availability by the Monday before Thanksgiving.

Agenda Item 8 - Housekeeping Items

Items:

- Comment card for Livability council this Wednesday.
 - They will provide talking points to base the comments on.
 - Deadline is 2 hours before the meeting on Wednesday @ 4 (due by 2 on Wednesday)
 - Anyone can submit a comment card on anything, even non-Tempe residents.
 - Commissioner Reinhardt wanted to stress that you can ask your peers to fill out the cards as well, and that those are the groups that they want to see responding.
- Talking points and ideas to Chair Jung and Vice Chair Burke through staff about general budget talking points for different groups.
- Chair Jung requests materials from the meetings that Grace and Braden will be having with council.

Agenda Item 9 - Future Agenda Items

Chair Jung asked if anyone has any future items:

- Commissioner Milam-Edwards asked to discuss how to create language and talking points or topics to educate students.

Chair Jung called for motion to adjourn.
Commissioner Milam-Edwards motions
Commissioner Reinhardt seconds

Motion: Commissioner Milam-Edwards **Second:** Commissioner Reinhardt

Decision: Approved 8-0

Voted to Approve:

Kendon Jung (Chair)
Barbie Burke (Vice Chair)
Ryan Mores
Jake Swanson
John Kane
Gretchen Reinhardt

Katja Brundiers Stephanie Milam-Edwards

Motion Passed 8-0.

The meeting was adjourned at 5:04 pm.

Prepared by: Henry Pearson Reviewed by: Grace DelMonte Kelly